LOCAL PTA/PTSA BYLAWS

East Coventry Elementary School PTA

(PTA/PTSA name)

Chester County

Region <u>12</u>—

| A | pproved by | y the general | membershir | at its r | neeting of | n October 16 | , 2018 |
|---|------------|----------------|-----------------|----------|------------|---------------|--------|
| | pproved b | , the Schieles | III CIII CICIII | <i>-</i> | meeting of | I O CLONCI IO | , |

Date of Approval

Attached is a copy of the minutes for the meeting when the bylaws were approved by the general membership. The minutes must reflect the motion to approve the bylaws, motion was seconded, the result of the vote and a list of attendees. All documents must be received by the state office within 90 days of approval date above. Submit via United States Postal Service or electronic mail (e-mail)*:

| *If submitting by e-mail, please cc the stat | e byławs & policies chairman, Ginny W: | ade at: HYPERLINK | | | | | | | |
|---|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| "mailto:bylaws@papta.org" bylaws@papta.org | | | | | | | | | |
| Ashley Pierce | ash | ley liferce | | | | | | | |
| President's Name Brinted | President | 's Signature | | | | | | | |
| 4847160488 | ? president | ecpta@gnail.com | | | | | | | |
| President's Phone # | President | 's e-mail | | | | | | | |
| Jann Quigley | Alma | Quelly | | | | | | | |
| Secretary's Name printed | Secretary' | s Signature () | | | | | | | |
| 610-564-7132 | 19P592/a | aol.com | | | | | | | |
| Secretary's Phone # | Secretary | 's e-mail | | | | | | | |
| Local Bylaws Chair's Name Printed (if applica | able) L | ocal Bylaws Chair's Signature | | | | | | | |
| Local Bylaws Chair 's Phone # |] | Local Bylaws Chair 's e-mail | | | | | | | |
| Review by 0 | Council Bylaws Chairman (if applied | cable) | | | | | | | |
| | | D. CD. | | | | | | | |
| Council Chairman's Name Printed | Council Chairman's Signature | Date of Review | | | | | | | |
| Council Chairman's Phone # | | Council Chairman's e-mail | | | | | | | |
| | | 2.2.3.2.3.2.3.2.3.2.3.2.3.2.3.2.3.2.3.2 | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | |

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE - REQUIRED APPROVAL BY PENNSYLVANIA PTA

Approved on behalf of the Pennsylvania PTA
Board of Managers by the Bylaws and Policies Committee

October 31, 2018

Date of approval (update every five (5) years from this date)

Signature & date Deblie Munson

Ginny Wade, state chairman 610-326-5659

bylaws@papta.org

East Coventry Elementary School PTA

BYLAWS INDEX

| <u>ARTICLE</u> | <u>TITLE</u> | <u>PAGI</u> |
|-----------------|---|-------------|
| # ARTICLE I | NAME | 3 |
| ## ARTICLE II | PURPOSES | 3 |
| ## ARTICLE III | PRINCIPLES AND BASIC POLICIES | 3 |
| #ARTICLE IV | RELATIONSHIP WITH NATIONAL PTA AND PENNSYLVANIA PTA | 4 |
| #ARTICLE V | BYLAWS | 5 |
| #ARTICLE VI | VOTING | 5 |
| #ARTICLE VII | MEMBERSHIP AND DUES | 5 |
| ARTICLE VIII | OFFICERS | 6 |
| ARTICLE IX | DUTIES OF OFFICERS | 7 |
| ARTICLE X | EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE | 9 |
| ARTICLE XI | COMMITTEES | 10 |
| #ARTICLE XII | GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS | 11 |
| ARTICLE XIII | COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP | 11 |
| # ARTICLE XIV | PENNSYLVANIA PTA CONVENTION | 12 |
| # ARTICLE XV | FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTIBILITY | 12 |
| # ARTICLE XVI | DISSOLUTION AND WITHDRAWL OF CHARTER | 13 |
| # ARTICLE XVII | PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY | 13 |
| # ARTICLE XVIII | AMENDMENTS | 14 |

Review & follow the <u>Bylaws Model Instructions</u> prior to updating bylaws.

Required by the Pennsylvania PTA. ## Required by National PTA.

¹There should be a corresponding section listing the duties of each vice president.

²There should be a corresponding section listing the duties of each secretary.

ARTICLE I: NAME

The name of this non-profit association is the <u>East Coventry Elementary School</u> Parent-Teacher Association (PTA), and may be referred to in these bylaws as "this PTA/PTSA", located in <u>Pottstown</u>, Pennsylvania. It is a PTA/PTSA organized under the authority of the Pennsylvania Congress of Parents and Teachers, Inc. (the Pennsylvania PTA), a branch of the National Congress of Parents and Teachers (the National PTA).

ARTICLE II: PURPOSES

Section 1. The purposes (objects) of this PTA/PTSA, in common with those of the National PTA and the Pennsylvania PTA are:

- a. to promote the welfare of children and youth in home, school, places of worship, and throughout the community;
- b. to raise the standards of home life;
- c. to advocate for laws that further the education, physical and mental health, welfare, and safety of children and youth;
- d. to promote the collaboration and engagement of families and educators in the education of children and youth;
- e. to engage the public in united efforts to secure the physical, mental, emotional, spiritual, and social well-being of all children and youth; and
- f. to advocate for fiscal responsibility regarding public tax dollars in public education funding.

Section 2. The purposes of the National PTA, the Pennsylvania PTA and this PTA/PTSA are promoted through advocacy and education with parents, families, teachers, educators, students, and the general public; developed through conferences, committees, projects, and programs; and governed and qualified by the basic principles set forth in Article III.

Section 3. The association is organized exclusively for the charitable, scientific, literary or educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or corresponding Section of any future federal tax code (hereinafter "Internal Revenue Code".)

ARTICLE III: PRINCIPLES AND BASIC POLICIES

Section 1. The following are principles of this PTA/PTSA in common with those of the National PTA and the Pennsylvania PTA:

- a. The association shall be noncommercial, nonsectarian, and nonpartisan.
- b. The association shall work to engage and empower children, families, and educators within schools and communities to provide quality education for all children and youth, and shall seek to participate in the decision-making process by influencing school policy and advocating for children's issues, recognizing that the legal responsibility to make decisions has been delegated by the people to boards of education, state education authorities, and local education authorities.
- c. The association shall work to promote the health and welfare of children and youth, and shall seek to promote collaboration among parents, schools, and the community at large.

d. Commitment to inclusiveness and equity, knowledge of PTA, and professional expertise shall be guiding principles for service in National PTA.

Section 2. The following are basic polices of this PTA/PTSA in common with those of the Pennsylvania PTA are the 'operational requirements and dissolution' of National PTA and are IRS requirements for all 501(c)(3) associations:

- a. No part of the net earnings of the association shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to, its members, directors, trustees, officers, or other private persons except that the association shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered, and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in Article II hereof.
- b. Notwithstanding any other provision of these articles, the association shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (i) by an association exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code or (ii) by an association, contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code.
- c. Upon the dissolution of the association, after paying or adequately providing for the debts and obligations of the association, the remaining assets shall be distributed to one or more nonprofit funds, foundations, or associations that have established their tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and whose purposes are in accordance with National PTA.
- d. The association or members in their official capacities shall not, directly or indirectly, participate or intervene (in any way, including the publishing or distributing of statements) in any political campaign on behalf of, or in opposition to, any candidate for public office; or devote more than an insubstantial part of its activities to attempting to influence legislation by propaganda or otherwise.

ARTICLE IV: RELATIONSHIP WITH NATIONAL PTA AND PENNSYLVANIA PTA

Section 1. This PTA/PTSA shall be organized and chartered under the authority of the Pennsylvania PTA in the area in which the PTA/PTSA functions, in conformity with such rules and regulations, not in conflict with Pennsylvania PTA bylaws. The Pennsylvania PTA shall issue to this PTA/PTSA an appropriate charter evidencing its organization and good standing. Five (5) members (minimum) are required to organize a new local unit PTA/PTSA and to maintain PTA/PTSA status.

Section 2. Pennsylvania PTA provides services only to PTA/PTSAs that are in good standing. To participate in the Reflections Program at the state level and receive state mailings, local units must be in good standing.

Section 3. A PTA/PTSA in good standing shall:-

- a. adhere to the purposes, principles, and basic policies of the PTA;
- b. have bylaws approved according to the procedures of the Pennsylvania PTA;
- c. remit the state and national portion of the membership dues in accordance with their own bylaws;
- d. submit the Annual Local Unit Registration Form to the state office immediately upon election of officers but no later than June 15 annually;
- e. forward to the state office each year, upon completion, a copy of their Form 990N, 990, or 990EZ as required per IRS regulations;
- f. forward a signed copy of all audit reports to the state office immediately following their adoption by the general membership; and

g. meet other criteria as may be prescribed by the Pennsylvania PTA.

ARTICLES V: BYLAWS

- **Section 1**. The articles of organization of this PTA/PTSA include (a) the bylaws of such association and (b) the certificate of incorporation or articles of incorporation of such association (in cases in which the association is a corporation) or the articles of association by whatever name (in cases in which the association exists as an unincorporated association).
- **Section 2.** This PTA/PTSA shall adopt such bylaws for the government of the association on a model provided by the Pennsylvania PTA and such bylaws shall be approved by the Pennsylvania PTA. Such bylaws shall not be in conflict with the National PTA bylaws or the bylaws of Pennsylvania PTA.
- **Section 3.** The adoption of an amendment to any provision of the National PTA or the Pennsylvania PTA bylaws that is relevant to the local unit bylaws shall apply automatically and without the requirement of further action by this PTA/PTSA to amend its corresponding bylaws. Notwithstanding the automatic character of the amending process, this PTA/PTSA shall promptly incorporate such amendments in its bylaws.
- **Section 4.** This PTA/PTSA shall include in its bylaws provisions corresponding to the provisions of National PTA and Pennsylvania PTA bylaws identified by the (#) symbol and cannot be deleted or amended in any manner by this PTA/PTSA.
- **Section 5.** PTA/PTSA bylaws shall be updated every five (5) years on the most current model available from the Pennsylvania PTA.

ARTICLE VI: VOTING

- **Section 1**. Only members of this PTA/PTSA who have paid dues for the current membership year may vote on the business of this PTA/PTSA.
- **Section 2.** Each member is entitled to one (1) vote, even though they may be serving in more than one (1) position.
- **Section 3.** Current membership must be verified for voting privileges.
- **Section 4.** The bylaws of this PTA/PTSA shall prohibit voting by proxy.
- **Section 5.** A PTA/PTSA member shall not serve as a voting member of this PTA's board while serving as a paid employee of or under contract to this PTA/PTSA.

ARTICLE VII: MEMBERSHIP & DUES

- **Section 1.** Every individual who is a member of this PTA/PTSA is, by virtue of that fact, a member of the National PTA and of the Pennsylvania PTA by which this PTA/PTSA is chartered and is entitled to all the benefits of such membership.
- **Section 2.** Membership in PTA shall be open, without discrimination, to anyone who believes in and supports the mission and purposes of the National PTA.

Section 3. This PTA/PTSA shall conduct an annual enrollment of members but may admit individuals to membership at any time. The membership year shall begin on July 1st and end on June 30th annually.

Section 4. Each member of this PTA/PTSA shall pay such annual dues to said association as may be prescribed by the association. The amount of such dues shall include the portion payable to the Pennsylvania PTA -the "state portion"- and the portion payable to the National PTA -the "national portion."

Section 5. The national portion of each member's dues shall be two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$2.25) per annum as determined by the National PTA.

Section 6. The state portion of each member's dues shall be two dollars and seventy-five cents (\$2.75) per annum as determined by the Pennsylvania PTA.

Section 7. The local portion of each member's dues shall be determined by this PTA/PTSA at their annual general membership meeting.

Section 8. PTA/PTSA Membership:

- a. Upon payment of dues, a person of Full Age shall become a member of a PTA/PTSA unit and shall be entitled to all privileges of membership, including holding office and voting.
- b. Upon payment of dues, a person of less than Full Age (example: student in a PTA/PTSA) shall become a member of a PTA/PTSA unit and shall be entitled to all privileges of membership including voting, holding chairmanships and offices, with the exception of president, first vice-president, secretary and treasurer.
- c. Of Full Age: eighteen (18) years of age or over, as set forth by the Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes, Title 15, Corporations and Unincorporated Associations, under which the Pennsylvania Congress of Parents and Teachers, Inc. is governed along with the Pennsylvania PTA bylaws.

Section 9. Membership dues with required documentation shall be submitted on a monthly basis to the state office. Local units that do not submit any dues to the state PTA office postmarked by September 30 shall be notified that their non-profit status is in jeopardy.

ARTICLE VIII: OFFICERS

Section 1. Officers. The officers of this PTA/PTSA shall consist of:

- # a. one (1) president;
 - b. two (2) vice presidents;
 - c. one (1) secretary; and
- #d. one (1) treasurer.

Section 2. Eligibility. The following provisions shall govern the qualifications and eligibility of individuals to be officers of this PTA/PTSA:

- a. Each officer shall be a current member of this PTA/PTSA.
- b. No person shall serve in more than one elected position in this PTA/PTSA simultaneously.

Section 3. Term. Officers shall assume their official duties <u>at the June dinner meeting following installation</u> and shall serve for a term of one (1) year, or until their successors are elected.

- a. A person who has served in an office for more than one-half of a full term shall be deemed to have served a full term in such office.
- b. No officer may be eligible to serve more than three (3) consecutive terms in the same office.

Section 4. Vacancy. A vacancy occurring in the office of president shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term by <u>a willing current member of the executive board</u>. A vacancy in any office other than the president shall be filled by a member elected by the executive board.

#Section 5. Nominating Committee.

- a. **Composition.** The nominating committee shall consist of <u>three (3)</u> local unit members. The president shall not serve as a member of this committee.
- b. **Election.** The members of the nominating committee shall be elected by this PTA/PTSA at a regular meeting at least 2 months prior to the election of officers at the annual meeting (as listed in # Article XII: General Membership Meetings, Section 1.b.) The committee shall elect its own chair.
- c. **Duties.** The nominating committee shall:
 - i. send out notification of elections;
 - ii. confidentially consider all candidates for elected positions who meet the eligibility requirements set forth by these bylaws and who have provided written consent to serve if elected; may consider additional candidates during its confidential deliberations; and
 - iii. submit only one (1) name for each position to be filled.
- d. **Report.** The nominating committee shall report its nominees to the general membership at least one (1) month prior to the election of officers at the annual meeting (as listed in # Article XII: General Membership Meetings, Section 1.b.)

#Section 6. Nominations from the floor. Nominations from the floor shall be accepted at the election meeting. Nominees shall be current members of this PTA/PTSA and shall have submitted written consent.

#Section 7. Elections. Officers shall be elected:

- a. at the annual general membership meeting;
- b. by written ballot if there is more than one (1) candidate and a majority vote shall elect; and
- c. by voice vote when there is only one (1) candidate. Only affirmative votes shall be valid.

ARTICLE IX: DUTIES OF OFFICERS

Section 1. All officers shall perform the duties as provided in these bylaws, and as may be prescribed by the association, the parliamentary authority and as directed by the president or the executive board of this PTA/PTSA

Section 2. The president shall:

- # a. preside at all general membership and executive board meetings of this PTA/PTSA;
- #b. confirm that a quorum is present (refer to Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised, current edition);

- #c. serve as an ex-officio member of all committees with the exception of nominating, election, and audit committees;
- #d. coordinate the work of the officers and committees of this PTA/PTSA in order that the purposes may be promoted;
- #e. communicate with state PTA to comply with all standards of affiliation and maintain 'good standing' status as outlined in these bylaws;
- #f. file the Annual Local Unit Registration Form with the state PTA office immediately upon election of officers and no later than June 15 annually;
- #g. serve as the official representative of this PTA/PTSA and be authorized to sign contracts;
- #h. retain all official records of this PTA/PTSA and have a current copy of this unit's bylaws available for membership review;
- #i. appoint a parliamentarian as needed; and
- #j. return all current unused membership cards by July 1 to the state office or be charged annual dues for each card not returned. Failure to submit payment will result in suspension of services.

Section 3. The vice-president(s) shall¹

- # a. serve as aide(s) to the president; and
- #b. in their designated order 1st vice president and then 2nd vice president, perform the duties of the president in the president's absence or inability to serve.

Section 4. The secretary shall²

- #a. record the minutes of all general membership and executive board meetings of this PTA/PTSA;
- #b. maintain a current copy of the bylaws and membership list;
- #c. at each meeting, present a written copy of the minutes from the previous meeting, for corrections/amendments and approval;
- #d. maintain at each meeting, written records for at least the previous twelve (12) meetings, for possible review by members; and
- #e. be responsible for all correspondence of the association, as needed and as directed by the president

Section 5. The treasurer shall:

- # a. hold and maintain a full account of all the funds of this PTA/PTSA;
- #b. keep a full and accurate account of all income and expenditures including bank statements, deposit receipts, budgets, invoices, and paid receipts in accordance with the records retention policy as provided by the Pennsylvania PTA;
- #c. remit monthly, five dollars (\$5.00 = national + state portions of dues) for each member of the PTA/PTSA, as listed on the Dues Remittance Form, to the state PTA office (see Article VII: Membership & Dues, Section 9. & #Article IV: Relationship with National PTA and Pennsylvania PTA, Section 1.);

- #d. record national and state portions of the membership dues separate from record of general funds of this PTA/PTSA;
- # e. make disbursements in accordance with the budget adopted by the general membership this PTA/PTSA;
- # f. present a written and verbal financial statement of each financial account which shall include the balance from the previous meeting, list of deposits and expenditures, and current balance, along with a combined balance of all accounts, at all executive board and general membership meetings;
- #g. present a preliminary annual financial report which shall include the approved budget figures and the actual current figures, at the annual general membership meeting of this PTA/PTSA;
- #h. present all audit reports to the general membership for adoption at the first general membership meeting held after their completion;
- #i. such books of account and records shall be open to inspection, at all reasonable times, by an officer of this PTA/PTSA, an authorized representative of the Pennsylvania PTA or, where directed by the committee on state and national relationships;
- #j. if unit is incorporated, notify the Pennsylvania Department of State, Bureau of Incorporation, when there is a change of officers;
- #k. prepare or cause to be prepared, the appropriate IRS 990 form by the 15th day of the 5th month after the end of the fiscal year of this PTA/PTSA;
- #1. forward to the state PTA office annually:
 - i. a copy of the Form 990N, 990, or 990EZ as required per IRS regulations upon completion; and
 - ii. a signed copy of all audit reports to the state office immediately following adoption by the general membership.
- #m. compile and submit all financial documents necessary to complete an audit to the elected audit committee or approved auditor as directed by the executive board.

ARTICLE X: EXECUTIVE BOARD

- **Section 1.** The business of this PTA/PTSA shall be managed by the executive board between general membership meetings.
- **#Section 2.** Each executive board member shall be a member of this PTA/PTSA.
- **Section 3.** The members of the executive board shall be:
 - # a. elected officers.
- **Section 4.** Duties of the executive board shall be to:
 - # a. transact business as may be referred to it by the membership of this PTA/PTSA;
 - #b. create standing and special committees and appoint chairmen/coordinator for all committee;
 - #c. approve plans of work of the committees;
 - #d. present a report of all action taken by the Executive board at every general membership meeting of this PTA/PTSA;

- # e. elect an auditor or an auditing committee to audit the treasurer's accounts;
- # f. prepare an annual budget for the upcoming fiscal year, to submitted to the members for adoption at the annual general membership meeting;
- #g. approve payment of routine bills within the limits of the approved budget; and
- #h. act in emergencies between general membership meetings and have all emergency actions ratified at the next general membership meeting.
- **#Section 5**. If any member of the executive board shall at any time cease to meet the qualifications or fulfill the duties of the position as listed in the bylaws, that person shall be removed from the position by a motion adopted first by the executive board and then by the general membership. The vote shall be by a majority.
- **Section 6**. Regular meetings of the executive board shall be held with the date and time to be fixed by the board at its first meeting of the year.
- **Section 7**. Special meetings of the executive board may be called by the president or when requested by a majority of its members upon **five (5)** days' advance written notice to each member of the board.
- **Section 8**. At all meetings of the executive board, a majority of the members of the board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.
- **Section 9.** Upon the expiration of the term of office or when individuals cease to hold the position on the board, they shall automatically be relieved of all duties and responsibilities. All records, books, and other materials pertaining to the position shall be turned over to the president and all funds pertaining to the position shall be returned to the treasurer within fourteen (14) days.

ARTICLE XI: COMMITTEES

- **Section1. Committees.** The executive board shall create such standing and special committees as deemed necessary to promote the purposes and appoint the chairman/coordinator for all committees.
- Section 2. Standing Committees. The standing committees of this PTA/PTSA shall be: <u>yearbook</u>, <u>book</u> <u>fair</u>, <u>box</u> tops, <u>pizza</u> bingo, 5th <u>and</u> 6th <u>grade social</u>.
- **Section 3**. **Chairman/Coordinator Eligibility.** Only members of this PTA/PTSA shall be eligible to serve as a committee chairman/coordinator.

Section 4. Chairman / Coordinator Term.

- a. The term of office of each committee chairman/coordinator shall be one (1) year or until a successor is appointed.
- b. A chairman/coordinator shall not be eligible to serve more than three (3) consecutive terms as the chairman/coordinator of the same committee.

Section 5. Chairman/Coordinator Duties. Each committee chairman/coordinator shall:

- a. present a plan of work to the executive board for approval;
- b. coordinate all work of the committee;
- c. perform other duties as assigned by the president; and

d. upon the expiration of the term of office or when individuals cease to hold the position, they shall automatically be relieved of all duties and responsibilities. All records, books, and other materials pertaining to the position shall be turned over to the president and all funds pertaining to the position shall be returned to the treasurer within fourteen (14) days.

ARTICLE XII: GENERAL MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

Section 1. Regular Meetings. This association shall hold a minimum of three (3) general membership meetings during the membership year.

- a. Dates of general membership meetings shall be determined by the executive board and announced at the first general membership meeting of the year, as well as through all communication channels used by this PTA/PTSA. Five (5) days' advance notice shall be given to the membership of a change of date.
- b. The annual meeting shall be held in <u>May</u> at which time the business shall include the election of officers by the members, determination of next year's local portion of the dues, preliminary annual fiscal report, and presentation of next year's budget for approval by the membership.

Section 2. Special Meetings. A special meeting of this PTA/PTSA, if needed, shall be called by the president or by the majority of the executive board with three (3) days' advance notice which shall include the date, time, place and purpose for the meeting. No other business shall be discussed or conducted.

Section 3. Quorum. The quorum for the transaction of business in any general membership meeting of this PTA/PTSA shall be <u>seven (7)</u> members.

ARTICLE XIII: COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP N/A

ARTICLE XIV: PENNSYLVANIA PTA CONVENTION

Section 1. This PTA/PTSA shall be entitled to be represented at the state convention of the Pennsylvania PTA by the president (or alternate) and local members as shown on the record of the state treasury for the current calendar year, upon payment of the registration fee as determined by the Pennsylvania PTA state board of managers.

Section 2. Delegates or their alternates shall be selected in accordance with the standing rules of this PTA/PTSA

ARTICLE XV: FISCAL YEAR AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Section 1. Fiscal Year The fiscal year of this PTA/PTSA shall begin on <u>July 1</u> and end on the following <u>June 30</u>. The fiscal year of a PTA/PTSA shall be the same as its accounting year and shall be in accordance with the information provided on the SS-4 form currently filed with the IRS.

Section 2. Banking

- a. All funds shall be kept in bank accounts in the name of this PTA/PTSA.
- b. All checks shall be signed by two (2) authorized signers.
- c. Authorized signers on the bank accounts shall not be related by blood or marriage and shall not reside in the same household.

- d. There shall be at least three (3) authorized signers listed at the bank.
- e. The president and treasurer shall be signers, unless prohibited by employment.
- f. A member shall be appointed by the executive board, who is not an authorized signer on the bank account(s) to open, review, initial/date each bank statement and forward to the treasurer.

Section 3. Financial Audit(s)

- a. An annual financial audit shall be performed by an auditor approved by the executive board or by an audit committee of at least three (3) members elected by the executive board.
 - i. The auditor or audit committee members shall not be authorized signers, the incoming treasurer, related by blood or marriage and shall not reside in the same household as the authorized signers.
 - ii. A report of the findings of the audit shall be submitted in writing to the executive board to be presented to the general membership for adoption by majority vote at the next regular general membership meeting; the report shall be signed and dated by all auditing parties.
- b. A financial audit shall also be performed if an authorized signer is added or deleted on any bank account and at any other time deemed necessary by the president or three (3) or more members, by an audit committee that shall be elected by the executive board within five (5) days. (Refer to subsection a.i. and a.ii. above for committee requirements and reporting.)

ARTICLE XVI: DISSOLUTION & WITHDRAWAL OF CHARTER

Section 1. This PTA/PTSA shall be subject to withdrawal and the status of such association as a PTA unit shall be subject to termination, in the manner and under the circumstances provided in the bylaws of the Pennsylvania PTA.

Section 2. A PTA/PTSA considering dissolution must:

- a. arrange for a Pennsylvania PTA representative to speak in favor of continuing PTA/PTSA at a meeting of the executive board prior to taking action;
- b. upon the decision of the executive board to recommend dissolution of the unit, that recommendation shall be presented to the members at the next general membership meeting and shall include an announcement that the vote on the dissolution will be taken at the next regular meeting (a 2/3 vote is required to dissolve);
- c. require that each person voting to dissolve shall have been member of this PTA/PTSA for at least ninety (90) days;
- d. arrange for a Pennsylvania PTA representative to speak to the members at the general meeting at which the vote is to be taken;
- e. arrange for the proper disposal of PTA/PTSA funds and property according to the provisions of these bylaws; and
- f. provide for the dissolution to take effect immediately after the dissolution is voted and shall not to be post-dated.

Section 3. This PTA/PTSA shall be obligated, upon withdrawal of its charter by the Pennsylvania PTA to:

a. yield up and surrender all of its books and records and all of its assets and property to the Pennsylvania PTA, or to such agency as may be designated by the Pennsylvania PTA, or to another

- local PTA organized under the authority of the Pennsylvania PTA (Refer to #Article III: Principles and Basic Policies, Section 2.c);
- b. cease and desist from the further use of any name that implies or connotes association with the National PTA or the Pennsylvania PTA or status as a constituent association of the National PTA; and
- **c.** promptly carry out, under the supervision and direction of the Pennsylvania PTA, all proceedings necessary or desirable for the purpose of dissolving this PTA/PTSA.

#ARTICLE XVII: PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY

The rules contained in the current edition of *Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised* shall govern this association and in all cases in which they are applicable and in which they are not in conflict with these bylaw, the Pennsylvania PTA bylaws, or the Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE XVIII: AMENDMENTS

Section 1. Amendment Process. These bylaws may be updated or amended at any general membership meeting of this association by a two-thirds vote of the members present and voting, provided that notice of the proposed amendment shall have been given at least thirty (30) days prior to the meeting at which the amendment is voted upon and that amendment shall be subject to the approval of the Pennsylvania PTA.

Section 2. Final Approval. After adoption at a membership meeting of this PTA/PTSA, the bylaws shall be submitted to the Pennsylvania PTA for approval according to the procedures set forth by the Pennsylvania PTA. Amended bylaws go into effect when a state approved copy is returned to the president of this PTA/PTSA.

EAST COVENTRY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

PTA MEETING MINUTES October 16, 2018

Call Meeting to Order at 7:02

Principal's Report - Todd Oswald

- Will open the doors at 6:00 for community open house during Family Fall Fun Fest.
- Thanked the volunteers for helping get the library, and other areas of need, organized.
- First Lockdown Drill on October 16 to help everyone understand the procedures in new building and had
 a fire drill last week.
- Halloween information sent home regarding parades and parties.
- Fruit with Families event planned for November 14 and 15. Information will come home in the next few
 days. Parent visitation on November 14 and 15, as well.
- November 19 and 20 are parent-teacher conferences. Students will be dismissed at 11:50. Look for conference information to come home around November 1.
- Rotating recess inside and outside since the "big kids" playground is not ready yet.

Head Teacher's Report - Brad Lamison

- . Things going smoothly with the flow of different grade levels throughout the building.
- Technology in the classrooms Apple TVs hook to projectors so kids can show what they are doing on their IPads creating a real world feel.

Treasurer's Report - Betsy lannarino

- \$11,487.13 in checking account
- 175 total members

Reporting Committees

Bylaws vote - Geralyn McErlean

- · Bylaws were presented at last month's meeting.
- Motion by Lyse DiCarlo, second by Natalie Nau to approve. Bylaws approved by Natalie Nau, Lyse
 DiCarlo, Todd Oswald, Mary Rita Bonner, Mary Kearney, Brad Lamison, Joanne Williams, Devon Byers,
 Cassie Gordon, Jann Quigley, Ashley Pierce, Geralyn McErlean, Betsy lannarino, and Ashley Pierce.

Fall Family Fun Fest Oct 19th - Betsy lannarino

- · Unable to get pumpkins this year, so there will be more crafts available.
- 143 students and 185 adults are registered

Box Tops - Jann Quigley

Box Tops deadline is Wednesday, October 24. We have about \$850 to be submitted from the end of the
year collection, in addition to what we will collect next week.

Joe Corbi's fundraiser - Ashley Pierce

- · Orders due by October 26.
- Pickup on November 16.
- Samples will be available at Family Fall Fun Fest.

Spaghetti Dinner Nov 9th - Geralyn McErlean/Natalie Nau

- · Working with Foresta's on the menu.
- · Will be looking for baked good, lemonade, iced tea, and water donations.

Book Fair Nov 12th - 16th, 19th and 20th - Ashley Pierce

- Will be open during American Education Week and Conferences.
- Funds can be deposited into an EWallet. Any unused funds are refunded after the book fair is over.
 Students also have the ability to have a mock transaction and take a receipt home to let the parent's know how much money they need.
- May do a pre-order for the new <u>Diary of a Wimpy Kid</u> book.

Holiday Vendor Show Nov 17th - Betsy lannarino/Robyn Derban

- 59 vendors and crafters have signed up.
- . There will be a basket raffle and items are being donated by the vendors and crafters for a raffle, as well.

Parent's Night Out Dec 14th - Kaycee Wilkie/Devon Byers

More information will be shared at the November PTA meeting.

Spiritwear - Kaycee Wilkie/Jennifer Colon

- Still looking for a vendor that can do hoodies, shirts, hats, headbands, etc.
- · Will have these items available at student store, as well.

Yearbook - Betsy lannarino

- Cover contest to go out in the next couple of weeks.
- Will be getting the 5th and 6th graders together to work on ideas for the yearbook.
- · Would like parent volunteers to help with event pages.
- · Pictures from events can be sent to yearbookecpta@gmail.com.

Rock decorating - Betsy lannarino

 Rocks are being donated and will ask Mrs. Corcoran if she could have the students paint the rocks during Art class. Rocks will be placed in a path around the school.

Correspondence - Jann Quigley

- · Flowers send to Mrs. Umstead for a death in her family.
- Card and gift to be sent to Mrs. Christou for the birth of her twins.

New Business

- 4th and 5th graders can get a ski pass from Spring Mount.
- Bus routes: Concerns that buses are turning around at old East Coventry and whether during the winter the drive will be maintained if there is snow and ice. The answer is yes.

Adjournment at 7:51

Respectfully submitted,

Jann Quigley

Recording Secretary, ECPTA